
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, March 3, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Welcome – Matt Greeson, Chair 

 

2. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of January 7, 2016 minutes 

 

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

 IT Assessment 

 

4. Ohio Energy Mandates – Steve Stolte, Sustainability Advisory Committee 

Chair and Steve Campbell, Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 

 

5. Committee Updates 

 Benefits & Compensation Committee – Eric Phillips 

 Bylaws Committee – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

 Nominating Committee – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

 Regional Policy Roundtable – Laura Koprowski 

o Capital Budget 

 Reserve & Investment Advisory Committee – Joe Stefanov, Chair 

 Sustainability Advisory Committee – Kerstin Carr & Christina O’Keeffe 

 Transportation Policy Committee – Thea Walsh 

 

6. Quarterly Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler 

 

7. State of the Region Awards Selection – Laura Koprowski 

 

8. Draft Commission Agenda 

 

9. Other Business 

 

 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR 

ssaunders@morpc.org IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 



 
 
Executive Committee Meeting 

March 3, 2016 

Page 2 

 

The next Executive Committee Meeting is 

Thursday, April 7, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, January 7, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present 

Karen Angelou 

Marilyn Brown 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Ebert 

Matt Greeson 

Kim Maggard 

Rory McGuiness 

Gary Merrell 

Eric Phillips 

Joe Stefanov 

 
MORPC Staff Present 

Bernice Cage 

Evelyn Ebert 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Susan Tsen 

Thea Walsh 

Brandi Whetstone

 

 

Welcome – Matt Greeson 

Chair Matt Greeson called the meeting to order at 1:34 p.m.  

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Tracie Davies; motion passed. 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

William Murdock reported that the operations transition has gone smoothly. The first All-Staff meeting is 

January 11, 2016 and will focus on new MORPC programs and initiatives. Franklin County is helping with 

human resources. Shawn Hufstedler’s new title is Chief of Staff & Director of Operations. Susan Tsen has 

been promoted to Assistant Director of Operations & Finance Director. Ms. Tsen is responsible for the day-to-

day finance activities. There may be other shifts in the Operations Department. 

 

MORPC Team Members provided assistance to and worked with the Capital Partnership to prioritize regional 

projects for the Capital Bill. MORPC’s application for the data lab project has moved forward. Proposed 

projects now go before the governor’s administration and the legislature.  MORPC Team Members also 

advocated having funding for the Clean Ohio Fund Program included in the Capital Bill.  

 

The Smart City Competition is a major grant opportunity for the City of Columbus that could result in great 

regional benefits. The application for the $50 million grant is due February 4, 2016. MORPC, Battelle, and 

OSU are partnering with Columbus as they put together the proposal for alternative technology transportation 

and electric car infrastructure. The top five proposals will be announced in March; they will then each receive 

a $100,000 grant to continue their planning. The final application is due in May and the final announcement 

will be made in June. The grant matches well with regional initiatives. Possible regional benefits include 

companies coming to the region and Central Ohio being ground zero for advanced technology in the future. 

Support letters from the region will be important for the application.  

 

As part of our insight2050 efforts, Kerstin Carr was invited to be a part of a national dialogue on scenario 

planning in Arlington, Virginia, January 6-7, 2016. The Age-Friendly initiative is moving forward. MORPC Age-

Friendly Coordinator Katie White begins February 1, 2016.  

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

January 7, 2016 

Page 2 

 
State of the Region Award nominations are due January 15, 2016. 

 

Registration is now open for the National Safe Routes to School Conference which is April 5-7, 2016.  

 

The National Association of Regional Councils (NARC) National Conference of Regions is February 7-9, 2016 in 

Washington, DC. A number of MORPC Team Members and Commission members are attending. Visits will be 

made to Central Ohio Congressional Leaders.  

 

Diversity & Implementation Plan Update – William Murdock & Shawn Hufstedler 

Two years ago the Commission approved MORPC’s Diversity & Implementation Plan which is regularly 

updated. MORPC is refreshing the organization structure; Laura Koprowski is now the lead facilitator for the 

plan. Bernice Cage has been promoted to Sr. Public Information & Diversity Officer and will continue the day-

to-day activities. The goal is to include board members in the discussion and on the committee.  

 

Shawn Hufstedler highlighted 2015 MORPC diversity accomplishments: 

 Identified training for implicit bias and cultural protocol for staff and board members. 

 Major emphasis on increasing MORPC’s diversity spend amount, specifically to minority business, with 

progress on increased spending anticipated in 2016.  

 Developed Limited English Proficiency Plan. 

 Worked to improve communications to the agency. 

 

More information will be provided in the full report presented in March. 

 

Bylaws Committee Update – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

The Bylaws Committee will meet to discuss the addition of the Regional Data Advisory Committee and the 

RTPO. Rory McGuiness is recruiting committee members who will be announced at the January 14, 2016 

Commission meeting. 

 

Nominating Committee Update – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

Rory McGuiness is finalizing 2016 Nominating Committee members who will be announced at the January 14, 

2016 Commission meeting. The committee will meet in February and bring recommendations in March.  

 

Regional Policy Roundtable Update – Laura Koprowski 

Steve Campbell is the new Regional Policy Roundtable Chair and Kim Maggard is the new Vice Chair. New 

members are being recruited. The next meeting is January 19, 2016. 

 

William Murdock, Laura Koprowski, Rory McGuiness and Steve Tugend attended a strategy session with 

regional federal partners looking at top priorities for federal funding in Central Ohio. Let William Murdock or 

Laura Koprowski know of community projects you would like included. 

 

Laura Koprowski and Christina O’Keeffe shared a draft comment letter on the Clean Energy Incentive Program 

(CEIP) of the Clean Power Plan. The U.S. EPA requested input on the CEIP. MORPC’s Energy & Air Quality 

Working Group, Sustainability Advisory Committee and Regional Policy Roundtable discussed the program and 

drafted the letter to include comments on designing the CEIP in the best interest of Central Ohio. The letter is 

submitted to the Executive Committee by the Committees for consideration and with a recommendation for 

submission to the U.S. EPA.  The letter takes an interested party approach (e.g. not for or against) and is a 

topic covered in MORPC’s 2016 Public Policy Agenda. The deadline to send comments is January 21, 2016. 

The State of Ohio is taking a multi-prong approach. While Ohio is challenging the legal authority of the law, the 

Ohio EPA director is charged with developing compliance strategies if the regulation is upheld. Kim Maggard 

made a motion to send the letter to the U.S. EPA, second by Karen Angelou; motion passed. Gary Merrell 

abstained. 

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

January 7, 2016 

Page 3 

 
Transportation Policy Committee Update – Thea Walsh 

The Rural Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO) is moving ahead. Union and Madison Counties have 

already approved resolutions. Knox, Morrow, Marion and Fairfield Counties are in the approval process. There 

is some interest in Pickaway County. MORPC will receive $180,000 additional grant funding from ODOT for 

transportation planning outside the MPO. The RTPO will be under the Commission, not the MPO.  

 

Investment & Reserve Committee Update – Joe Stefanov, Chair; William Murdock and Shawn Hufstedler 

The Investment and Reserve Committee met December 8, 2015 to discuss creating a reserve and bringing 

additional stability to MORPC finances and creating more opportunities for revenue development. Joe 

Stefanov, William Murdock and Shawn Hufstedler presented the Reserve Recommendation.  The committee's 

approach is to use a package of short-term and long-term strategies as there is no easy fix for reaching the 

long-term goal. For example, one of the long-term strategies involves a proposed 3.5 cent per capita increase 

in building dues for the Operating Reserve.  To generate another 30 days of reserve using this strategy would 

take 20 years.  A short-term solution to repurpose a portion of the building sale proceeds for reserve purposes 

was also discussed.  Other items were also discussed such as the funding of a management reserve and an 

enterprise fund to fund new revenue generating initiatives. The next steps are to finalize the recommendation 

and develop draft reserve policies for Executive Committee and Commission approval later in 2016. The 

Executive Committee agreed by consensus to move forward. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Update – Christina O’Keeffe 

Christina O’Keeffe expressed pride in the Residential Energy Efficiency Team that exceeded 2015 goals.  

 

 Proposed Resolution EC-01-16: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT WITH THE UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL OHIO FOR $90,000 FOR A 2016 EXTERIOR HOME 

REPAIR PROGRAM” 

Gary Merrell made a motion to approve Resolution EC-01-16, second by Eric Phillips; motion passed. 

 

 Proposed Resolution 01-16: “AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A 2016-2020 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT AND ASSOCIATE ANNUAL STATEMENTS OF WORK WITH 

NISOURCE CORPORATE SERVICES COMPANY FOR THE WARMCHOICE PROGRAM” 

Kim Maggard made a motion to approve Resolution 01-16, second by Tracie Davies; motion passed.  

 

Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby 

Eileen Leuby gave the January 2016 Membership Report. 

 

Draft Commission Agenda 

The Executive Committee reviewed the draft January 14, 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda. 

 

Other Business 

Matt Greeson thanked William Murdock in advance for speaking at the Annual Worthington Area Chamber of 

Commerce Groundhog Day Breakfast. 

 

Matt Greeson is moderating an Ohio City County Managers Association panel discussion that includes Kerstin 

Carr speaking about the demographic changes in Central Ohio. Other panel representatives include speakers 

from National Church Residences and the New Americans Initiative in Dayton.  

 

Worthington will be installing three pedestrian hybrid beacons on High Street in Old Worthington. Delaware 

and Columbus are also using them. 

 

Thea Walsh will be speaking about passenger rail and William Murdock will be giving a presentation on the 

Competitive Advantage Program in Union County.  

 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/07-07-2016ReserveRecommendationPPT.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/01-07-2016MemReportExecCommittee.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

January 7, 2016 

Page 4 

 
Tracie Davies is now the Director for the City of Columbus Public Utilities Department. Rory McGuiness is now 

a Deputy Director for the City of Columbus Development Department. 

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 3:20 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Matt Greeson, Chair 

Executive Committee 



 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

 

DATE: 

 

February 26, 2016 

SUBJECT: Nomination of Executive Committee Members 

 

BACKGROUND 

In accordance with the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Articles of 

Agreement, the Commission will be notified at least five (5) days prior to the Annual 

Meeting as to the nominees for MORPC’s Officers and Executive Committee Team 

members. The Nominating Committee excerpt from the Articles is as follows: 

"At least twenty (20) days prior to the annual meeting, the chair shall appoint the 

Nominating Committee. Said Nominating Committee having been duly appointed 

and confirmed shall, at least ten (10) days prior to the annual meeting of the 

COMMISSION, report the names of the candidates so nominated to the secretary. 

The secretary shall advise each member of the COMMISSION, in writing, at least 

five (5) days prior to the annual meeting as to the nominees so selected. At the 

annual meeting, the chair of the Nominating Committee shall report the names 

so nominated. After this report is presented, nominations from the floor shall be 

invited. Such nominations must be seconded. The secretary then shall prepare 

ballots properly identifying the nominees, said ballots shall be distributed and 

tallied during the annual meeting by a temporary committee appointed for that 

purpose." 

 
The Five Nominating Committee Members are: 

Rory McGuiness-Committee Chair, Deputy Director, City of Columbus 

Chris Bauserman, County Engineer, Delaware County 

Marilyn Brown, County Commissioner, Franklin County 

Ted Staton, City Manager, City of Upper Arlington 

Nancy White, Township Administrator, Mifflin Township 

 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Nominating Committee convened on February 5, 2016 and made the following 

recommendations: 

 

The nominees for Officers for renewed one-year Officer Terms (expires 2017):   

Matt Greeson, Chair, City Manager, City of Worthington 

Rory McGuiness, Vice Chair, Deputy Director, City of Columbus 

Karen Angelou, Secretary, Council Member, City of Gahanna 

 



 

 

Nomination of Executive Committee Members 

February 26, 2016 

Page 2 

 

The nominees for Executive Committee are: 

 

For renewed one year Executive Committee Terms (expires 2017): 

Joe Stefanov (2008), Chair of Investment & Reserve Committee 

 City Manager, City of New Albany 

Derrick Clay (2007), Chair of Building Committee 

 President/CE0-New Visions, Franklin County representative 

Marilyn Brown (2007), Chair of Compensation & Benefits Committee (pending) 

 County Commissioner, Franklin County, 

Eric Phillips (2007), Past Chair, Executive Director/Chamber CEO, Union  

 County/Marysville Economic Development Partnership 

Matt Greeson (2009), Officer, City Manager, City of Worthington 

 

For renewed two-year Executive Committee Terms (expires 2018): 

Karen Angelou (2014), Council Member, City of Gahanna  

Michael Ebert (2014), Mayor, City of Canal Winchester 

Rob Platte (2014), Township Administrator, Etna Township 

Rory McGuiness (2014), Deputy Director, City of Columbus 

 

Note: Several Executive Committee positions do not have expiring terms this year 

and therefore require no action by the Nominating Committee:   

 

In the second year of a two-year Executive Committee Term (expires 2017)  

Tracie Davies (2014), Director, Public Utilities, City of Columbus 

Gary Merrell (2015), County Commissioner, Delaware County 

Kim Maggard (2015), Mayor, City of Whitehall 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 
 

William Murdock, Executive Director 
Executive Committee 
 

FROM: 
 

Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 
 

DATE:  
 

February 29, 2016 

SUBJECT: 
 

Financial Report – December 2015 

Summary 
 
Overall, the financial position shows underspending vs. the budget and similar under-collection of 
revenues vs. budget. The cash position was just over $888,000 in the operating account. Through 
the end of the year, the actual fringe rates were better than projected.  Overhead rates were slightly 
unfavorable through year end. This is subject to change with the audit and currently does not include 
the pension liability. The pension liability is the result of a new GASB pronouncement requiring a 
liability for future pension costs to be shown on local government financial statements and will be 
very large. 

 
Operating Income (Change in Net Position) 
 
There has been a decrease in net assets (operating loss) from operations on a year-to-date basis of 
$447,206. This is primarily the result of a combination of costs-to-date that were unrecovered for 
home repair programs ($105,211), costs incurred for building due diligence and office 
improvements ($99,960) for which revenue was recorded in prior years, State of the Region 
($13,625), and most significantly the cost of sales of the final NSP property of $255,750 earlier in 
the year, but for which revenues were received in prior years.  

As previously reported, the home repair programs incurred net losses this year, as the funds 
available per unit were not sufficient to cover the costs of the program. Analyses of these programs 
were performed emphasizing the need for cost effective and cost-covering programs resulting in a 
revised contractual proposal from MORPC to our primary funder, which was accepted. The new 
proposal is expected to cover the costs expected to be incurred while fulfilling the obligations of the 
new programs. Additional attention is also being given to process improvements in the home repair 
area, including sharing of capacity resources with the weatherization programs where functions can 
be streamlined to handle both programs, such as client intake.  

 
Member Dues 
 
Member dues revenue was 8.2% of total year-to-date operating revenue.  Use of member dues were 
under budget at $13,572 year-to-date. Use of all current year and prior year (includes building due 
diligence and office improvement activities) member dues were as follows: 



Financial Report – December 2015 
Page 2 

 
 

                     Year-to-Date 2015 
    Budget                 Actual 

Services to Members $ 312,510 
 

$ 329,495 
Local Matching Funds $ 296,731  $ 272,051 
Development Fund $ 81,365  $ 90,879 
Building Lease $ 64,000  $ 63,959 
Member Services Coordination $ 87,078  $ 81,800 
Leasehold Improvements & ---------
---------Building Due Diligence $ 100,000 

 
$ 99,690 

Other $ 51,500  $ 41,739 
Total $ 993,184  $ 979,612 

 
 
Fringe Benefit and Indirect (Overhead) Variances 

 
Fringe Benefits 
The actual fringe benefit cost rate for the year-to-date was 66.14% which is lower than the 
budgeted rate of 68.5%, creating a favorable variance for the year-to-date of $61,670.  The 
increased collection of employee portion of the health care costs began in April, which has 
helped decrease net fringe costs. Additionally the premium cost of the health benefits per 
employee provided through Franklin County increased by 3.5% instead of the estimated 4%.  This 
rate and variance is a significant improvement over 2014. MORPC will ‘give back’ the $61K via 
the 2017 fringe benefit rate.  

Indirect (Overhead) 
The actual indirect cost variance for the year was extremely close to budget, only slightly higher 
than the budgeted rate of 55.5% by $203. The $203 will be collected via the 2017 indirect cost 
rate. 

 

Statement of Net Assets 

 Cash on hand was $888,128 which was equal to 3.4 weeks’ worth of cash flow.  The 
HOPE 3 Trustee also held cash of $43,773 restricted to HOPE 3 and NSP costs. The 
building sale proceeds cash account remained at $2.1 million. The building 
improvement/maintenance fund held $747,363.  

 Accounts Receivable totaled $1,451,341 compared to $1,778,386 at the end of 2014. 
The decrease is the result of a new staffing member and improvements of getting 
invoices out on a timely manner.   

 Accounts Payable plus Other Accrued Liabilities were $428,189, a decrease versus the 
$631,961 combined balance at the end of 2014.   

 
 
Expenses and Appropriations 
 
Year-to-date expenses totaled $11,337,291 or 85.0% of the total year's operating appropriations of 
$13,345,462 for the year as MORPC spent well within appropriations for the year. 



MORPC
Balance Sheet

As of 12/31/2015

12/31/2015
Balance at 

12/31/2014
Balance at 

Assets
Current Assets

Cash 888,127.69 690,133.88 
Cash with Trustee NSP1 Franklin Co 42,050.33 0.00 
Cash with Trustee HOPE 3 1,722.72 19,462.63 
Cash-Building Sale Proceeds 2,104,979.39 2,103,356.11 
Cash-Building Improvement Reserve 747,362.59 891,964.80 
Accounts Receivable 1,451,340.88 1,778,385.54 
Prepaid Expenses 109,600.73 101,806.42 

Total Current Assets 5,345,184.33 5,585,109.38 
Non-Current Assets

Forgivable Mortgages 133,724.87 152,330.63 
Fixed Assets 555,161.42 805,826.61 
Contributed Assets 369,976.01 448,890.74 
NSP 1 Properties 0.00 255,750.33 
Accumulated Depreciation (722,076.02) (1,036,442.01)

Total Non-Current Assets 336,786.28 626,356.30 
Total Assets 5,681,970.61 6,211,465.68 

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 254,612.89 465,210.60 
Accrued Payroll 209,523.58 222,456.42 
Accrued Fringe Benefits 65,472.29 48,476.48 
Other Accrued Liabilities 173,576.29 166,750.55 
Accrued Annual & Separation Sick Leave 60,000.00 60,000.00 
Deferred Income 441,199.06 453,122.63 
Deferred Income-Indirect Reserve (202,820.54) (239,645.41)
Deferred Fringe Benefit Reserve (153,222.15) (284,654.11)

Total Current Liabilities 848,341.42 891,717.16 
Non-Current

Accrued Annual and Separation Sick Leave 338,628.77 316,810.11 
HOPE 3 Deferred Income 28,222.03 42,432.43 
Other Mortgages-Deferred Income 105,502.84 109,898.20 
Accrued Building Lease Expense 47,530.98 89,657.46 

Total Non-Current 519,884.62 558,798.20 
Total Liabilities 1,368,226.04 1,450,515.36 

Net Assets
Beginning Net Assets

Net Assets 4,760,950.32 4,760,950.32 
Total Beginning Net Assets 4,760,950.32 4,760,950.32 

Current YTD Net Income
(447,205.75) 0.00 

Total Net Assets 4,313,744.57 4,760,950.32 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 5,681,970.61 6,211,465.68 

Date: 2/19/16 12:39:46 PM Page: 1



Budget  
Quarter Ending 
12/31/2015

Actual
 Quarter Ending 

12/31/2015 Variance

Budget
 Year to Date  
12/31/2015

Actual
 Year to Date 
12/31/2015 Variance

Revenue
   Member Dues  $      149,106  $       149,721  $             615  $      596,453  $       607,871  $       11,418 
   Energy and Air Quality       1,028,858            995,774          (33,084)       4,240,885        3,876,949       (363,937)
   Environment, Mapping &       1,614,522        1,241,405        (373,117)       6,192,168        5,109,198    (1,082,971)
   Residential Rehabilitation          489,213            282,501        (206,712)       2,391,511        1,294,752    (1,096,759)
   Other            51,157              51,324                 167           277,484                1,316       (276,169)
      Total Operating Revenue  $  3,332,855  $    2,720,725  $    (612,130)  $ 13,698,502  $  10,890,085  $(2,808,417)

Expenses
   Salaries & Fringe Benefits  $  1,643,693  $    1,429,812  $    (213,881)  $   6,585,254  $    5,812,351  $   (772,903)
   Materials & Supplies          137,500              44,497          (93,003)           550,000            345,691       (204,309)
   Services - Subcontractors          833,900            718,525        (115,375)       3,358,212        2,820,278       (537,934)
   Services - Other          712,999            502,894        (210,105)       2,851,996        2,014,058       (837,938)
   Depreciation               9,068              21,929            12,862             72,540              86,762           14,222 
   Indirect Allocation                      -                          -                       -                         -                          -                       - 
   Loss on Fixed Asset Disposal                      -                  2,401              2,401                       -                  2,401             2,401 
   Cost of Property Sales                      -                          -                       -                         -              255,750         255,750 
      Total Expenditures  $  3,337,160  $    2,720,057  $    (617,102)  $ 13,418,002  $  11,337,291  $(2,080,711)

Operations Income (loss)  $         (4,305)  $               668  $          4,972  $      280,500  $      (447,206)  $   (727,706)
Interest Income                  500                    756                 256               2,000                1,623               (377)
Capital Contributions            25,000                        -            (25,000)           100,000                        -         (100,000)

Change in Net Position  $        21,196  $            1,424  $      (19,771)  $      382,500  $      (445,583)  $   (828,083)

MORPC
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position

10-1-2015 through 12-31-2015

Date:  2/29/2016, 12:37 PM Page:  1


